

FRIENDS OF THE ROCKY RIVER PUBLIC LIBRARY INC. BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I. NAME

Section 1. The name of the organization shall be FRIENDS OF THE ROCKY RIVER PUBLIC LIBRARY, INC.

ARTICLE II. PURPOSE

Section 1. The purpose of Friends of the Rocky River Public Library, Inc. shall be to focus public attention on Rocky River Public Library to maintain an association of persons and organizations interested in public libraries; to stimulate the use of the library's services and resources, to support the library in its development of library services, resources and facilities for the community, to receive and encourage gifts, endowments and bequests to the Friends and to the Library Foundation, and to provide direct financial assistance to the library as requested.

ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Membership in this organization shall be open to all individuals and organizations in accord with its purpose.

Section 2. There shall be six classes of membership: Individual, Family, Sponsor, Patron, Business and Honored Donor.

Additionally, Life Memberships prior to 1989 will remain in effect.

Section 3. Each membership shall be entitled to one vote.

Section 4. Donations shall be payable annually and shall become due on the first day of the fiscal year which begins July 1. The amount for each class of membership shall be established by the Governing Board and shall become part of the list of Policies and Procedures.

ARTICLE IV. BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. The Board of Trustees of Friends of the Rocky River Public Library shall consist of seven (7) elected members.

Section 2. The Board of Trustees shall constitute the Officers and two (2) Members at Large of this Organization. Officers shall include the President, Vice President, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary and Treasurer.

Section 3. All Officers shall be elected for a period of one (1) year by a majority vote of those members attending the annual meeting. The Officers shall take office at the conclusion of the annual meeting.

Section 4. The Board of Trustees shall have the power and responsibility to create such standing and special committees as may be deemed necessary to carry on the work of the organization.

Section 5. The Board of Trustees shall have the power and responsibility to fill any vacancies on the Board of Trustees until the next annual meeting.

ARTICLE V. THE GOVERNING BOARD

Section 1. The Governing Board shall be comprised of the Trustees of the organization and the Standing Committee chairpersons.

Section 2. The management of the organization shall be vested in the Governing Board which shall devise plans for carrying out the work of the organization; shall see that those plans are implemented; shall establish Policies and Procedures within which the work is carried out; shall approve expenditures not previously included in the approved budget and shall report its plans and actions to the membership.

Section 3. The President shall have the power and responsibility to fill any chairperson vacancy on the Governing Board.

ARTICLE VI. STANDING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES

Section 1. Standing Committees function throughout the year. Special Committees function only until specific tasks have been completed. The following shall be the Standing Committees of Friends of Rocky River Public Library: Historian, Hospitality, Newsletter, and Membership.

Section 2. The duties and responsibilities of the Standing Committees shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

Historian: Maintain the minutes of the Trustees Meetings, the Annual Meeting and track volunteer hours.

Hospitality: Arrange for and provide food and beverages for meetings and other events Friends of the Rocky River Public Library may hold.

Newsletter: Shall be responsible for the biannual publishing of Friends of the Rocky River Public Library Newsletter. Specifically, a newsletter shall be published once in fall/winter and once in spring/summer.

Membership: Shall be responsible for the annual report of the membership and communication with the Treasurer regarding membership.

Section 3. The chairperson of each committee shall present a plan of work to the Governing Board for approval. No committee work shall be undertaken without the consent of the Governing Board.

Section 4. The chairpersons of each committee shall prepare an annual report of the work of each committee and shall present it to the President for inclusion in the records of the organization at least one week prior to the annual meeting.

ARTICLE VII. MEETINGS OF THE GOVERNING BOARD

Section 1. The regular meetings of the Governing Board shall be held at least quarterly to transact the business of the organization.

Section 2. Special meetings of the Governing Board may be called by the president or at the request of three members of the Governing Board. Notice of a special meeting shall be given to all members of the Governing Board at least three (3) days prior to the special meeting.

Section 3. The governing board members present at a meeting of the Governing Board shall constitute a quorum and a majority vote of those present is needed to transact business.

ARTICLE VIII. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Section 1. At least three (3) months prior to the annual meeting the President shall appoint a nominating committee to be comprised of at least one member of the governing board and two members from the membership at large. The member appointed from the Governing Board shall serve as chairperson of the Nominating Committee.

Section 2. A slate of officers, President, Vice President, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, Treasurer and two (2) Members at Large shall be recommended by the Nominating Committee members no later than one month before the annual meeting. Names of the consenting nominees shall be posted on the Friends page of Rocky River Public Library's website and posted in the lobby of Rocky River Public Library at least two weeks prior to the annual meeting and such notice shall state that additional nominations may be made from the floor with the consent of the nominee.

ARTICLE IX. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1. The President shall be the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees and of the Governing Board, shall preside over and conduct meetings of the Board of Trustees, Governing Board and the Annual Meeting; shall appoint a chairperson of each standing committee, shall have the power to create Special Committees and Special Committee Chairpersons, as the need arises; shall be an *ex officio* member of all committees except the Nominating Committee; shall in the absence of or temporary disability of the Treasurer sign and/or endorse financial documents; shall have such powers of supervision and management as may pertain to the office of President; and shall perform such other duties as may be designated either by the Board of Trustees or the Governing Board.

Section 2. The Vice President shall perform the duties of the President in the absence or temporary disability of the President, and shall perform such other duties as the President shall designate.

Section 3. The Recording Secretary shall record the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Governing Board and the Annual Meeting.

Section 4. The Corresponding Secretary shall conduct all correspondence of the organization.

Section 5. The Treasurer shall collect and receive all monies due, shall be the custodian of these monies, shall deposit them as designated by the Board of Trustees, shall disperse them upon direction of the Governing Board, shall present statements to the Governing Board at its regular meetings, and shall present an annual report of the membership.

ARTICLE X. ANNUAL MEETING

Section 1. The Annual Meeting of the organization shall be held in June at such time and place as may be designated by the Governing Board.

Section 2. Members shall be notified in writing at least two weeks prior to the date of the Annual Meeting. Such notice to the Membership will be made by posting notice on the Friends' page of Rocky River Public Library's website and posting notice in the lobby of Rocky River Public Library.

Section 3. The Annual Meeting shall include an annual report from the President, the Treasurer, the Chair of the Membership Committee and the Director of the Library. The Nominating Committee shall present the slate of officers for immediate consideration.

Section 4. The members present at the annual meeting shall constitute a quorum, and a majority vote of those members present is necessary to transact business.

Section 5. In addition to the Annual Meeting as provided herein, a special meeting of the general membership may be called at any time by the Board of Trustees or Governing Board or twenty-five (25) members at large, upon the same notice and quorum requirements as outlined above in Article X sections 2 and 4.

ARTICLE XI. FISCAL YEAR

Section 1. The fiscal year of the organization shall be July 1 to June 30.

ARTICLE XII. AMENDMENTS

Section 1. The By-Laws may be amended at any meeting of the general membership by a two thirds vote of those members present, provided that notification of the proposed changes shall have been posted on the Friends' page of Rocky River Public Library's website and posted in the lobby of Rocky River Public Library at least two weeks prior to the meeting at which the vote is to be taken.

Section 2. Any proposed changes in the Articles of Incorporation may be voted upon by the membership in a similar manner following the above procedures and approved changes shall be submitted to the proper state authority.

Section 3. A committee may be appointed by the Board of Trustees to submit a revised set of By-Laws as a substitute for the existing By-Laws which may be adopted by a two thirds vote of the members attending a general membership meeting under the same conditions as stated above.

ARTICLE XIII. DISSOLUTION

Section 1. In the event of the dissolution of this organization all assets and monies shall be donated to the Rocky River Public Library, Rocky River, Ohio.

ARTICLE XIV. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE

Section I. Roberts Rules of Order as most recently revised shall govern the proceedings of this organization when they are not in conflict with these By-Laws.